

Minutes Norco Academic Senate Meeting On March 17, 2025 1:30 - 3:30 PM | CSS 217 & via Zoom

Meeting called to order at 1:32 PM.

1. Attendees

Officers, Senators, Alternates, and Committee Chairs & Liaisons: Laura Adams, Maria Adams, John Alpay, Kim Bell, Michael Bobo, Meghan Chandler, Araceli Covarrubias, Vivian Harris, Marie Hicks, Brian Johnson, Ana-Marie Olaerts, Dan Reade, Tim Russell, Erin Spurbeck, Jim Thomas, Patty Worsham, Steff Warsinski, Sigrid Williams

<u>Guests</u>: Michael Collins, Ariel Davis, Monica Green, Tenisha James, Jeff Julius, Roger Perez

2. Approval of Agenda

M/J. Alpay, S/J. Thomas; Approved by Consensus

3. Approval of Minutes for March 3, 2025
M/J. Alpay, S/M. Hicks; Approved by Consensus

4. Comments from the Public None

- 5. **CTA Report** (Araceli Covarrubias, Norco College Faculty Association Vice President & Michelle Ramin, Norco College Faculty Association Representative)
 - Please complete the CBA survey sent out via email from Michelle Ramin; responses will assist with the next contract negotiation
 - Special projects can be addressed in an IOI, but cannot be used against a faculty member
 - District Safety and Security meeting recommended the creation of a task force to develop guidelines for emergencies when classes are in session; Araceli Covarrubias from the Faculty Association will be participating as well as a Senate representative
 - I-9 termination letters have gone out and apply to associate faculty; HR is not allowing an appeal based on rationale that they have been trying to contact faculty for two years; CTA recommending that intent to hire paperwork be completed by chairs; if you feel there is an error contact Graciella
 - Faculty concerns about evaluators showing up late or leaving early to meetings during the IOI process
 - Faculty reached out to CTA following the last Senate meeting when course CAP was discussed; administration needs to negotiate with CTA
 - Special projects need to be offered to all faculty in good standing, not specific individuals

Araceli Covarrubias and Michelle Ramin will be following up with President Green on how the need for faculty office space could impact disciplines/departments

6. Action Item: Ratification of Senate President Appointments (K. Bell)

• Approve ratification of Jeff Alphonse from Chemistry to the Leading From the Middle Team

M/J. Alpay, S/E. Spurbeck; Approved by Consensus

7. Information Item: The College Corps Program (A. Davis)

- Dr. Ariel Davis is the new Director of College Corps
- 3rd Cohort of College Corps created by Governor Newsom
- Students receive \$10K for college by participating in College Corps
- Norco has a stand-alone cohort of 50 students; 12 sites and focus areas (e.g., food insecurity, environmental stewardship, K-12 education)
- Students can apply for cohort 4 through the district application; eligibility requirements; starts September 2025 (Senate #10, 11)

7. Information Item: The Brown Act and Senate Committee Responsibilities (K. Bell/D. Reade)

- Has come to Senate's attention that some standing committees may not be fully following the Brown Act requirements
- Standing Committees of the Senate must follow the Brown Act
- Regular meeting agendas must be posted 72 hours in advance; must state meeting location and time; must be accessible to the public; cannot be posted solely on the website must be sent to NOR-ALL and posted publicly (in display case in Student Services) on a weekly basis; Senate will work on assisting with posting
- Agenda must contain items to discuss, and discussion items must be agendized
- Pandemic allowed for exceptions for teleconferencing; some flexibility still but with more requirements (voting by roll call for remote, remote attendance requires permission from the Senate, remote location must be open to the public)
- College strategic planning councils and school/department meetings do not fall under the Brown Act (Senate #7, 8)

9. Action Item: Selection of Nomination Committee Members (D. Reade)

- Spring Elections for all officer positions
- Dan Reade will be running for Vice President again, so he cannot serve on the committee
- Jacob Drainville and Marie Hicks are currently on the Nomination Committee, but we need an additional person
- Dan Reade will put together a guide to assist with the process
- Erin Spurbeck selected by consensus to replace Dan Reade on Nomination Committee.

10. Information Item: <u>AP 6210[A]: Minimum Qualifications and Equivalencies</u> (P. Worsham)

- Has already gone to District Academic Senate
- Workgroup with representation from the colleges, CTA, and the district

- Cross-district writing team put together to draft a document and then brought the draft back to the workgroup
- Document was from 2015, so it needed an update
- Took into consideration a multitude of issues
- Established regular review cycle and a process for procedural appeals
- Will take back concern that only current (not prospective) employees can appeal per the draft; question related to associate faculty applying for equivalency on the Intent to Hire

(Senate #7)

11. Officer Reports

A. Secretary/Treasurer (Hayley Ashby)

• No report

Vice President (Dan Reade)

• No report

President (Kimberly Bell)

- Will be running for Senate President for the next term
- Working with the Faculty Association and Administration on the special project process
- Concerns around space allocation; asked for a presentation on space ratios and allocation requirements, so that we can understand how we can best work together on space restrictions in the next few years

12. College Reports

A. President (Monica Green)

- Attended statewide CEO Symposium and a lot of discussion around Diversity Equity Inclusion Accessibility Antiracism (DEIAA); the state Chancellor's Office is working closely with the Attorney General, who is working with legal; also working with CSU and UCs; getting regular updates; no rolling back of funding or programs that have been approved; Ed Code supports the work we do in this area; keep administration informed if there are issues; 41% of CCCApply applications are fraudulent statewide (state implemented ID.ME, but students can opt out); looking into what the colleges need to address this; district is fast-tracking a contract with LightLeap AI to assist with identifying fraudulent students
- IEPI PRT on the Standard of Care including student engagement and technology issues; visit led by Dr. Tarrant on February 28 produced a Summary of Initial Visit and the PRT will provide a Menu of Options by the end of March; next visit on April 10; College has received calculations from the district and will be moving forward with hiring to support the Standard of Care using the established allocation; believes there is an error in the calculation, which the President will be working with the district on for 2025-2026
- Space allocation discussions; April 2 meeting for impacted faculty in Art and Science; presentation at Senate later this semester
- May 7-8 regional workshops on Inland Empire District State alignment with Vision 2030 and alignment of plans; Chancellor's Office is working with colleges regionally to discuss alignment

- March 28 Industry Partners and Awards Breakfast at Norco College in the Amphitheater starting at 7:30am includes breakfast, awards, alumnus of the year, and breakouts
- March 27 at 10-11am President's Office Hour
- May 30 District Guided Pathways Retreat in Jurupa Valley
- June 5 at 9am groundbreaking for the Center for Performing Arts and Kinesiology
- B. Interim Vice President of Academic Affairs (Quinton Bemiller)
 - No Report
- C. Vice President of Planning and Development (Tenisha James)
 - Currently working through last week of edits for SPGM, so please take the time to read the draft and provide feedback; deadline is March 21; email reminder will be sent to NOR-ALL; presentation at future Senate meeting; look especially at Section 2 and 3
 - A District Strategic Plan is in progress and looking to put together a workgroup to work on the document; there will be a gap year between the previous plan and the new one
 - Faculty Inquiry Teams are working on the new Equity Plan and will build on work on the inquiry study
 - April 4 will be the Equity Summit; RSVP to come out soon as food will be provided; calendar invite was accidentally canceled, but Dr. James will check on this
- D. Vice President of Student Services (Kaneesha Tarrant)
 - No Report
- 13. Standing Committees & Liaisons Reports
 - A. Academic Senate Standing Committees: APC, Assessment, CMAC, Curriculum, DE, FPDC, LGBTQ+ Advocates, Library/LRC, Program Review, TLC
 - B. Academic Senate Liaisons: Accreditation, CSEA, CTE, DBAC, DEMC, DSPC, Guided Pathways, Prison Education Program, District Safety and Security, Equity, PGSL
- 14. Meeting adjourned at 3:05 PM.

Ratification of Senate President Appointments – 3/17/2025

Leading from the Middle

• Jeff Alphonse, Chemistry

Human Resources

AP 6210[A] MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS AND EQUIVALENCIES

References:

Education Code Sections 87001, 87003, and 87743.2; Title 5 Sections 53400 et seq.; ACCJC Accreditation Standard III.A.2-4

I. <u>Equivalency Application</u>

If an individual's degrees and qualifications differ from the minimum qualifications listed for a position, but the individual possesses preparation that is at least the equivalent of the minimum qualification, the individual may apply for equivalency. Human Resources and Employee Relations is responsible for maintaining an equivalency application form.

Any applicant for a position or current faculty employee who wishes to submit an equivalency application, shall include the following required and optional information:

Required

- 1. A cover letter identifying the equivalency requested and all considerations the applicant sees as relevant to the claim of equivalency
- 2. Minimum qualification for which the applicant claims equivalency
- 3. The educational preparation applicable to the major field of study or general education requirement identified in the minimum qualifications
- 4. An unofficial academic transcript from the institution that granted the degree being used by the applicant as a basis for claiming equivalency (official transcripts will be required upon granting of equivalency)

Optional

- 5. Copies of the appropriate pages from the catalog of the institution that granted the degree being used by the applicant as a basis for claiming equivalency
- 6. Publications or other work products that support a claim of equivalency
- 7. A detailed description of work experience which the applicant believes establishes equivalency to the minimum qualifications. If the applicant is using work products or other items which cannot be submitted, detailed information from an objective source about the nature of this work product or experience should be provided.

Equivalency decisions do not guarantee a part-time or full-time candidate will be hired, nor that a current faculty member will be guaranteed an assignment within the specified discipline.

II. <u>District Equivalency Committee</u>

The District Equivalency Committee shall be composed of faculty appointed by the Academic Senate Presidents from each college. Each Academic Senate President shall retain authority over appointment, removal, and replacement for the respective committee members originating from their college. The Academic Senate President at each college will appoint 2 faculty members to serve on the committee for a 3-year term. The Academic Senate at each college will ratify all appointments, removals, and replacements originating from their respective college. Ideal candidates will have experience with hiring, chairing, and/or curriculum work. The equivalency committee will select its own chair at the beginning of each academic year, rotating by college annually, and the chair will not vote. The chair will facilitate deliberations and serve as a contact point with HRER.

The equivalency committee will meet at least once at the beginning of each academic year to:

- determine its chair
- review the current equivalency procedure and minimum qualifications guidance from the state chancellor's office and ASCCC
- determine its method for distributing/rotating representation of members for ad hoc equivalency panels
- review and assist with updating the annual list of discipline subject matter experts (and closely related disciplines, as needed) designated for ad hoc equivalency panels.
- The annually updated list of ad hoc equivalency panel designees will be accessible to department chairs, deans, Human Resources and Employee Relations, the Vice Chancellor of Education Services and Strategic Planning, the District Academic Senate, and the District Equivalency Committee.
- At the end of each academic year, or upon District Academic Senate request, the equivalency committee will deliver an activity report to the District Academic Senate (total equivalencies granted and denied, disciplines requested, total procedural appeals if any). The committee may also recommend or request a review of the equivalency procedure.

III. Subject Matter Discipline Experts

Subject-matter discipline experts will be pre-designated annually by each discipline at each college. Designees will stand ready to serve for 1 year as needed for equivalency panels within their disciplines or when needed as representatives from closely related disciplines. Designees may serve more than once or not at all during that year, depending upon the equivalency applications submitted.

The names of discipline subject matter experts designated for equivalency panel representation will be provided to each department chair and updated annually by the District Equivalency Committee and maintained by the Office of the Vice Chancellor Education Services and Strategic Planning. Disciplines will also work with their department chairs to identify closely related disciplines, if needed, for the list.

IV. Ad Hoc Equivalency Panels

- When HR receives an equivalency application, the equivalency committee shall appoint two (2) members from its body, and three (3) designated subject matter discipline experts, ideally one from each college, for the ad hoc equivalency panel.
- Discipline subject matter experts designated for ad hoc equivalency panels will be contacted by Human Resources and Employee Relations, with assistance as needed from the equivalency committee (or department chairs).
- The District Equivalency Committee may encounter special cases for equivalency requests, such as with brand new disciplines that do not yet exist within the district, or for disciplines that do not exist at all three colleges. In these or other unique situations, the District Equivalency Committee may consult with the Vice Chancellor of Educational Services, the President of District Academic Senate, and discipline subject matter experts or closely-related subject matter experts as designated to assist the District Equivalency Committee in making a determination.

V. <u>Process for Initiation of Equivalency</u>

To determine when an equivalency applicant possesses qualifications that are equivalent to the minimum qualifications specified in the Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges Handbook, the following process has been established:

- 1. When Human Resources and Employee Relations is informed by a hiring committee or by receipt of an application that a determination of equivalency is needed, the chair of the Equivalency Committee and discipline expert designees will be contacted as soon as possible to form the ad hoc panel. Human Resources and Employee Relations will provide members of the equivalency panel with the necessary information to determine equivalency no less than three working days prior to the meeting.
- 2. In the case of applications for part-time faculty positions (associate faculty), the Department Chair will initiate the petition for equivalency by indicating the need for equivalency on the Associate Faculty Intent to Hire form.
- 3. The ad hoc equivalency panel shall select one of the equivalency committee representatives to serve as chair. All members of the panel will review submitted materials, deliberate, and vote. A simple majority vote decides.
- 4. The ad hoc panel will review the supplied documentation and determine if the applicant has qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum qualifications of the discipline as specified in the Disciplines List. The panel will consult the criteria listed on the Equivalency Application along with minimum qualifications guidance from the State Chancellor's office and ASCCC.
- 5. The chair of the ad hoc equivalency panel will document the panel's determination in writing and will submit a panel-approved summary on the official form to Human Resources and Employee Relations within 5 working days upon reaching a decision. Individual voting by ad hoc panel members will not be recorded.
- 6. Human Resources and Employee Relations will forward the written notice of the equivalency panel decision to the applicant, chair, and dean within three (3) days of the panel's determination.

7. The results of the ad hoc equivalency panel decision shall be documented by Human Resources and Employee Relations and records kept of all decisions.

Appeal of a Denial of Equivalency

Current employees have five (5) days from date of notice of denial of equivalency to request an appeal by email to Human Resources and Employee Relations. Human Resources and Employee Relations will notify the District Equivalency Committee of the appeal request.

The equivalency committee will decide an appeal based on the following procedural questions:

- a. Was the decision made in accord with the procedure?
- b. Did the equivalency panel follow the Standards and Criteria Applicable for Determining Equivalency stated in this procedure?
- c. Did the equivalency panel review all of evidence submitted as indicated in the applicant's cover letter/form?

Following deliberation, a majority vote of the committee will be final, and the decision will be forwarded to Human Resources and Employee Relations, who will in turn forward written notice to the applicant, chair, and dean within three (3) days of determination.

VI. Standards and Criteria Applicable for Determining Equivalency

The following standards, general principles, and criteria apply when determining equivalency:

- 1. Equivalency determinations are intended to be holistic evaluations of a candidate's breadth of qualifications to determine if such qualifications are equivalent to at least the minimum qualifications set forth in the Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges approved by the board of governors. It is understood that committee and panel members who make equivalency decisions shall exercise their independent discretion to make a good faith determination if the qualifications presented are equivalent to the minimum standards of the respective discipline.
- 2. Minimum qualifications in a discipline—and, by extension, equivalency—are the same whether the position is for a full-time or part-time faculty member.
- 3. Equivalency is determined for an entire discipline, not on a course-by-course basis.
- 4. The granting of equivalency is on a case-by-case basis and does not set precedent for future determinations.
- 5. Past equivalency decisions in the discipline will be made available as needed to the equivalency committee to aid in their deliberations and can be considered when determining equivalency, though they do not establish precedent.
- 6. Equivalencies supersede limited credentials. Individuals who possess a Lifetime Credential in a discipline they wish to teach are judged to have met the minimum qualifications to teach in that discipline. Current or former RCCD faculty members who taught in a discipline under an Eminence or Limited Services credential at RCCD during the 1989-90 academic year are judged to have met the minimum qualifications of that discipline.

- Part-time faculty hired at RCCD under a previous determination of meeting the minimum qualifications, or the equivalent, within the District remain eligible for employment.
- 8. Degrees and credits establishing equivalency must be from accredited institutions.
- 9. An occupational license or certificate is required in certain instances (see Title 5 Section 53417).
- 10. Should an equivalency be granted to a faculty job applicant, that decision shall not give the applicant any more or any less consideration than other applicants. A granting of equivalency establishes an applicant's eligibility for hiring consideration as equal to other applicants possessing the minimum qualifications. In addition, granting an equivalency neither guarantees an interview, nor a job, nor a particular discipline assignment (including for current faculty).
- 11. It is the applicant's responsibility to provide all documentation in support of equivalency and to be available for questions. Applicants wishing to establish equivalency through work experience should provide objective, detailed information about those work experiences. Any applicant who fails to provide evidence to support his/her claim of a credential, or of minimum qualifications, or of equivalency may be eliminated from the applicant pool.
- 12. Various occupational experiences may be combined to total the required number of years established by the minimum qualifications; all experience must have taken place within the ten years preceding the date of application with at least one year of qualified experience occurring within the three years immediately preceding the date of application.
- 13. No candidate for a full-time position shall be recommended as a finalist for the position without meeting the minimum qualifications or having been awarded equivalency.
- 14. No candidate for part-time employment shall be hired without either meeting the minimum qualifications or having been awarded equivalency per these procedures.
- In all cases in which equivalency is granted or denied, an officially signed form shall be filed with the Office of Human Resources and Employee Relations and the Office of Academic Affairs. This form shall include a summary of the panel or committee's reasons (without attribution) for determining that a candidate does or does not have the equivalent of the minimum qualifications for the position. Human Resources and Employee Relations is responsible for creating and maintaining this documentation. This documentation may be requested by the candidate for the purpose of review.

Guidelines For Consideration Of Equivalency To Minimum Qualifications In Disciplines Requiring A Master's Degree (May Vary by Discipline)

In order to be considered for equivalency, in the case of disciplines normally requiring a Master's degree, the decision-makers may consider any of the following to guide them in exercising their independent discretion in making the holistic determination of equivalency:

- A Master's degree in a discipline which is not specifically named in Minimum
 Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges for
 the discipline in question, but which, when courses (and course descriptions) are
 carefully reviewed, clearly constitutes parallel and/or closely related coursework to
 the discipline which is specifically listed in Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and
 Administrators in California Community Colleges.
- 2. In specific disciplines as named by the Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges, a bachelor's degree in the discipline, plus licensure by an appropriate state agency, plus at least two years of professional experience, verified in writing.
- 3. A Master's degree in any discipline plus at least 30 semester units of upper division and/or graduate units in the relevant discipline, or a combination of upper division and/or graduate units, teaching, and/or other professional experience in the relevant discipline that would be equivalent to a Master's degree in the discipline.
- 4. A Bachelor's degree in the relevant discipline or a related discipline plus the unit/course equivalent to a Master's degree in the discipline.
- 5. A Bachelor's degree in the relevant discipline plus a Master's degree in any discipline and work experience related to the relevant discipline.
- 6. With regard to teaching experience, the equivalency committee or panel will carefully scrutinize, when applicable, an applicant's Graduate Teaching Assistant experience (GTA) and/or other Teaching Assistant experience (TA) to assure that it is equivalent to full-time teaching experience in the discipline at an accredited institution. Indeed, the applicant for equivalency must be able to document that the GTA and/or TA experience is equivalent to full-time teaching experience in the discipline at an accredited institution; otherwise, the GTA and/or TA experience may not be considered for equivalency. In addition, mentor or preceptor roles should not be considered directly equivalent to teaching experience or serving as instructor of record in an educational institution.
- 7. In addition to #1-6 above, an applicant may choose to include a record of accomplishments for consideration that demonstrate expertise and skill in the relevant discipline beyond those normally achieved through possession of a Master's degree in the discipline. See the definition of Eminence in the Appendix.

Guidelines For Consideration Of Equivalency To Minimum Qualifications In Disciplines That Do Not Require A Master's Degree (May Vary by Discipline)

In order to be considered for equivalency in the case of disciplines not requiring a Master's degree, the decisionmakers may consider any of the following to guide them in exercising their independent discretion in making the holistic determination of equivalency:

- 1. An Associate degree plus six years of related experience
- 2. Bachelor's degree plus two years of related experience,
- 3. Associate degree plus graduation from an institution specific to that field, plus two years of professional experience in the discipline, verified in writing, plus appropriate certification to practice or licensure, if applicable.

- 4. Pursuant to Title 5 § 53406, all degrees and coursework must be from colleges/universities accredited by one of the intersegmental accrediting agencies: Western Association of Schools and Colleges, Middle States Association of Colleges and Schools, New England Association of Schools and Colleges, North Central Associations of Colleges and Schools, Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, and Northwest Association of Schools and Colleges.
- 5. Licensure or certification in lieu of experience or education. General Educations units and work experience may be considered to balance the licensure or certification so as to equal that required in an Associate degree. General Education that is part of the attainment of the licensure or certification must be documented.
- 6. Accomplishments which demonstrate expertise and skill in the relevant discipline beyond those normally achieved through possession of the minimum qualifications specified in the Disciplines List. See the definition of Eminence in the appendix.
- 7. Mentor or preceptor roles should not be considered directly equivalent to teaching experience or serving as instructor of record in an educational institution.

VII. No Provisional Equivalency Allowed

The District Equivalency Committee and ad hoc equivalency panels will not grant provisional or temporary equivalency. All faculty hires must possess the minimum qualifications or be awarded equivalency to be employed by the District.

VIII. Qualifications Established By Degrees And Coursework From Educational Institutions Outside Of The United States

Applicants wishing to be granted equivalency based on coursework completed at an educational institution outside of the United States must provide the following:

- 1. A transcript assessment by a third-party degree assessment service.
- 2. Proof that the institution is accredited in its country of operation or in the United States.

IX. Local Minimum Qualifications And Equivalencies

Disciplines wishing to add local qualifications for hiring to their discipline beyond the minimum qualifications established by the Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges may do so with approval of the Academic Senate with a recommendation from the Equivalency Committee. Local requirements may not be added on a course-by-course basis. Equivalency for the local requirement will be determined through the equivalency process. Local requirements cannot exclude the consideration of equivalency.

X. Appendix of Relevant Terms

1. Faculty Service Area (FSA) A Faculty Service Area (FSA) is a service or instructional subject area or group of related services or instructional subject areas performed by faculty and established by a community college district.

- 2. Discipline A discipline is a curricular subject matter area designated by the Board of Governors and used in establishing Minimum Qualifications for faculty. Equivalencies are granted by discipline, not by single course. Discipline is also defined as a group of courses that share a common academic or vocational preparation. These courses are usually defined by a degree or degrees, such as an MFA, MA, BA, or MS, or by specific professional preparation. Disciplines are different from local departments or subject areas.
- 3. **Subject Matter Discipline Experts** (or Discipline SMEs): An individual with qualifications and experience in a particular field or work process; an individual who by education, training, and/or experience is a recognized expert on a particular subject, topic, or system.
- 4. Eminence: Eminence are those qualifications which, as evidenced by prominence and celebrity, are established by the specific industry and/or community at large and may be deemed equivalent to minimum qualifications. This may include appropriate local, state, national and/or international associations, trade unions, guilds or communities comprised of experts, who are themselves renowned in the specific field or subfield, and who can attest, in writing, to the prominence or celebrity of the applicant. It should be noted that within specific disciplines, eminence may be relative to a specific sphere of influence and expertise (e.g. eminence in classical guitar, but not, generally, in "music").
 Eminence alone is not sufficient to grant equivalency. An application of equivalency based on eminence must be accompanied by conclusive evidence that the applicant exemplifies qualities of a college-educated person and brings to the college district the knowledge and ability to be expected at the college level. The applicant must provide documentation supporting the status of eminence and establishing the
- evidence of impact within a specific sphere of influence within the discipline or field.

 Minimum Qualifications: The goal of the Riverside Community College District is to provide a faculty of highly qualified professional educators who are experts in their fields, skilled in teaching, and serve the needs of a varied student population. The District also seeks those who can promote overall college effectiveness and who are sensitive to the diversity of the District community. The District shall employ faculty who possess at least the minimum qualifications, as established by the California State Chancellor's Office. To comply with the requirements of the Community College Reform Act (AB 1725) all current RCCD faculty members who wish to change or expand their teaching area(s) and all new applicants for RCCD teaching positions must meet at least the minimum qualifications for the discipline(s) in which they wish to teach, as specified in the Board of Governor's Disciplines List. For courses with dual designators, deans and chairs from all relevant programs will collaborate to ensure that minimum qualifications are met.
- 6. Equivalency: Equivalency applies in cases where the individual's qualifications are not identical to the minimum qualifications specified in the Disciplines List, but are equal to or exceed those qualifications in substance. All community college faculty should exemplify the qualities of a college educated person.
 Any current RCCD faculty member or RCCD teaching position applicant who does not possess qualifications identical to the minimum qualifications specified in the Board of Governors' Disciplines List may petition for equivalency. Equivalency is not a waiver of minimum qualifications.

Equivalency may be recognized in three major ways: course work, work experience (including teaching experience), and eminence in the field—or a combination of the three.

Also see BP/AP 6410 Nondiscrimination, BP/AP 6420 Equal Employment Opportunity, BP/AP 6120 Recruitment and Hiring, BP/AP 6210 Academic Employees, AP 6212 Temporary Faculty, and the collective bargaining agreement.

Office of Primary Responsibility: Vice Chancellor, Human Resources & Employee

Relations

Administrative Approval: May 18, 2009

Revised: January 27, 2015

Revised: June 16, 2015 (References Only)

Revised:

Formerly: 7211

Timeline

District Academic Senate (Nov. 27, 2023): Chairs' committees were delegated to review the procedure along with the 2020 ASCCC guidance at each college and select volunteers for a workgroup.

Following College Dept. Chair Committee review (Feb. 2024-May 2024): Drafting was delegated to workgroup volunteers from the chairs committees at all three colleges. Cross-district workgroup included SMEs from MVC, Norco, and RCC, in collaboration with representation from FA, as well as VC Mills + Bishop, VC Zhai, HRER VC Few and designee (Graciela Caringella), and General Counsel Dobyns.

Cross-district workgroup met multiple times to review and discuss materials, draft and revise an update of the procedure through July-Oct. 2024. During this period, the workgroup also formed a cross-district writing team to lead on drafting in between large workgroup discussions.

Update/check-in from workgroup about July-October 2024 progress at November 2024 chairs' committees.

Workgroup met again in December through February to finalize a draft to be shared, and the workgroup agreed to bring the draft as a recommended revised procedure to DAS.

Key Goals and Principles Developed in Workgroup

- 1. Update to procedure was due diligence: No update of current AP since 2015; ASCCC recommendations were dated 2020. Peak total # of equivalencies (per HRER) was 46 in 2020 (lower years hover between 13-31). With a massive hiring lift due to the Golden Handshakes, we wanted to shore the process up.
- 2. Values: Preserving discipline SME voice and input in an intentional manner; identifying and delegating reps to serve on equivalency panels ahead of time; creating clarity in standard scenarios as well as special cases; coordinating communication about the procedure
- 3. Goals: a procedure with increased clarity, transparency, consistency, and coherence; shared faculty knowledge and training in equiv. procedure over time and across district in the district-wide committee and the panels.
- 4. Emphasis of faculty oversight/purview for equivalencies as well as discretion/confidentiality of HRER processes
- 5. Recognition of the need for timeliness in equivalency determinations, especially during impacted hiring cycles
- 6. Establishing regular review cycle for the procedure, as well as annual reporting to District Academic Senate (total equivalencies requested, granted, denied—no personal information), and a process for procedural appeal.

Proposed steps

Feb. 24, 2025: Sunshining completed draft at District Academic Senate (first read)

During March 2025 >> Allowing time for college department chairs' committees to look at the draft procedure and gather any questions/clarifications

March. 24, 2025: District Academic votes to accept the updated procedure drafted by the workgroup (second read/action)

April-June 2025: Information to DSPC and local senates, preparing to implement for AY 2025-26

Library & Academic Suport Committee (LASC)

Senate Report for March 17, 2025

1. Library Mission Statement

- a. The Wilfred J. Airey Library mission statement has been revised to encompass the 4 library service areas as listed in the 4 service area outcomes: research, resources, space, and events
 - i. The Wilfred J. Airey Library fosters student success for all members of the Norco College community by providing information literacy instruction, cultivating physical and online resources to meet academic and professional needs, offering physical learning spaces to support collaborative and independent learning, and sponsoring dynamic events to inspire intellectual discovery and career exploration.

2. Library Events

- a. Open House
 - Open House was held as an in-person event from 10am-2pm on Wednesday, February 25 & Thursday, February 26
 - ii. 200 students attended the event, with significantly more participants on Tuesday
 - iii. Moving forward, Open House may be hosted virtually on Wednesday to reach more distance education students
- b. Read 2 Succeed
 - i. The Spring 2025 Read 2 Succeed Book Discussion is being held on Thursday, March 20 during college hour (12:50-1:50pm) in CSS-217 and online via Zoom (<u>registration link</u>)

3. ASNC Report

- a. Club Rush wasn't as well attended this semester due to rain
- b. ASNC sponsored the Fight for Federal Funding event on Thursday, March13, in the Center for Student Success (CSS) upper lounge
- 4. Learning Resource Center Report
 - a. There are currently 59 tutors and 21 embedded tutors available
 - b. Additional tutors and hours are being added to the schedules
 - c. More students are checking out scientific calculators than in past semesters
 - d. Two part-time classified employees have temporarily increased hours to assist with coverage in the Learning Resource Center (LRC)

5. Writing & Reading Center Report

- a. The Writing & Reading Center Advisory Group hasn't met yet this semester, but everyone is welcome to join and attend the meetings
- b. The Writing & Reading Center raffled off an iPad for the Open House event, but only 47 students checked in with the QR code
- c. The spring 2025 workshop schedule has been emailed to Nor-All
- d. Contact Nikki Capps to schedule any additional workshops or class visits